FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT	1 – 2
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS	3 – 5
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Statement of Net Position	6
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position	7
Statement of Cash Flows	8
Notes to the Financial Statements	9 – 14
INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE	
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with <i>Government Auditing Standards</i>	15 – 16

4 Associate Drive Oneonta, New York 13820 Phone: (607) 432-8700 Fax: (607) 432-5122

www.mmscpas.com



Deborah L. Mostert, CPA Anthony T. Manzanero, CPA Mary E. Manzanero, CPA David E. Brownell, CPA

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors City of Kingston Local Development Corporation Kingston, New York

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying statement of net position of the City of Kingston Local Development Corporation ("KLDC") (a component unit of the City of Kingston), as of December 31, 2019, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to KLDC's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of KLDC's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the City of Kingston Local Development Corporation as of December 31, 2019, and the changes in its net position and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion and Analysis on Pages 3 – 5 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, and historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the method of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated May 15, 2020 on our consideration of KLDC's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering KLDC's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Mostert, Manzanero & Scott, LSP

Oneonta, New York May 15, 2020

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Year Ended December 31, 2019

As financial management of the City of Kingston Local Development Corporation (KLDC), we offer readers of these financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for KLDC for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019. This discussion and analysis is designed to assist the reader in focusing on the significant financial issues and activities and to identify any significant changes in financial position. We encourage readers to consider the information presented herein in conjunction with the financial statements taken as a whole.

Budget

KLDC occasionally receives grants, with a minimal amount of operating income, to extend its programs. KLDC files for various grants and loans to provide economic development assistance in the City of Kingston. However, the funding of these grants is not assured at the beginning of the year. Because KLDC does not know how much funding will be received during any year, how many loan applications will be approved, or what programs can be made available, KLDC cannot project the amount that it can use for its programs to project an accurate budget. KLDC strictly adheres to financial procedures and requirements of New York State General Municipal Law, Article 18A, and its own bylaws.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This management's discussion and analysis accompanies KLDC's financial statements, notes to the financial statements and the reports on compliance and internal control to help the reader better understand the financials.

Financial Statements

KLDC's financial statements provide readers with a comprehensive reporting of KLDC's 2019 transactions and balances. The difference between the assets and liabilities are reported as the net position. Increases or decreases in the net position are an indicator of strengthened or weakened financial position.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements.

Financial Analysis

KLDC's net position increased by \$39,094 in 2019. This was due to an increase in operating revenues, as a result of a bad debt recovery over the prior year. Operating revenues, increased by \$21,693 and operating expenses increased by \$1,476 for the year. Non-operating activities increased by \$441. KLDC's prime objective is administration of certain loan programs, economic development, technical assistance and training, operation of the Kingston Business Park of the City of Kingston, and infrastructure improvement aimed at fostering new job creation which are business-type activities. Since KLDC conducts only business-type activities, this annual report consists only of the statements of net position, revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows, which provide information about the activities of KLDC.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Year Ended December 31, 2019

The following is a 2019 - 2018 comparative summary of KLDC's financial statements showing the change in net position:

CITY OF KINGSTON LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION NET POSITION

	2019	2018
Current assets Non-current assets Total assets	\$ 3,667,697 3,603,819 7,271,516	\$ 3,640,407 3,732,633 7,373,040
Long-term debt Other current liabilities Total liabilities	678,645 5,753 684,398	810,103 14,913 825,016
Net position: Invested in capital assets, net Restricted Unrestricted	2,850,212 505,602 3,231,304	2,837,283 400,674 3,310,067
Total net position	<u>\$ 6,587,118</u>	\$ 6,548,024

CITY OF KINGSTON LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION CHANGES IN NET POSITION

	 2019	 2018
Operating revenues:		
Lending activities	\$ 41,381	\$ 44,182
Kingston Business Park	90,586	91,092
Bad debt recovery	 25,000	
Total operating revenues	 156,967	 135,274
Operating expenses:		
Lending activities	81,112	86,597
Kingston Business Park	 43,598	 36,637
Total operating expenses	 124,710	 123,234
Net operating income	 32,257	 12,040
Non-operating revenues:		
Interest and investments	6,837	6,396
Total non-operating revenues	6,837	6,396
Increase (decrease) in net position	\$ 39,094	\$ 18,436

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Year Ended December 31, 2019

CITY OF KINGSTON LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION CAPITAL ASSETS

	 2019	 2018
Capital assets: Land and property, net of depreciation	\$ 2,928,857	\$ 2,947,386
Total capital assets	\$ 2,928,857	\$ 2,947,386

CITY OF KINGSTON LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION OUTSTANDING DEBT

		2019	 2018
Outstanding debt: DOT (Kingston Business Park) HUD Loans	\$	78,645 600,000	\$ 110,103 700,000
Total outstanding debt	<u>\$</u>	678,645	\$ 810,103

Economic Factors

As discussed in Note 12 to the financial statements, management has analyzed and discussed the impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic and has determined that the loan portfolio could be negatively impacted in future years.

Requests for Information

Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or request for additional financial information should be addressed to Amanda L. Bruck, Executive Director, City of Kingston Local Development Corporation, 420 Broadway, Kingston, New York 12401.

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

December 31, 2019

ASSETS Current assets:	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 3,012,874
Restricted cash	505,602
Grants receivable	19,661
Current portion of loans receivable	129,088
Prepaid expenses	472
Total current assets	3,667,697
Non-current assets:	
Long-term portion of loans receivable, net of allowance of \$32,130	674,962
Land and property	2,928,857
Total non-current assets	3,603,819
Total assets	7,271,516
<u>LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION</u> Current liabilities:	
Accrued liabilities	5,753
Current portion of debt	131,458
Total current liabilities	137,211
Long-term liabilities:	
Long-term debt	547,187
Total liabilities	684,398
Not position.	
Net position:	2 950 212
Invested in capital assets, net related debt Restricted	2,850,212 505,602
Unrestricted	
Onestricted	3,231,304
Total net position	\$ 6,587,118

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Year Ended December 31, 2019

Operating revenues:	
Lending activities	\$ 41,381
Rental activities	90,586
Bad debt recovery	25,000
Total operating revenues	156,967
Operating expenses:	11.500
Professional fees	11,583
Depreciation	18,529
Insurance	4,702
Interest	17,233
Office expenses	1,576
Promotional/marketing	8,303
Repairs and maintenance	3,719
Other	3,229
Personal services and benefits	45,194
Utilities	10,642
Total operating expenses	124,710
Operating income	32,257
Non-operating revenues:	
Interest	6,837
Total non-operating revenues	6,837
Change in net position	39,094
Net position - Beginning of year	6,548,024
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR	\$ 6,587,118

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION

The City of Kingston Local Development Corporation ((KLDC), in Kingston, New York, was incorporated in 1994, under Not-For-Profit Corporation Law and is exempt from Federal income tax as an Organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

KLDC is operated exclusively for the charitable or public purposes of relieving and reducing unemployment, promoting and providing for additional and maximum employment, bettering and maintaining job opportunities, promoting instruction or training of individuals to promote or develop their capabilities for such jobs, aiding in attracting new business and industry, or by encouraging the development or retention of, business and industry within the City of Kingston.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation and Accounting

For purposes of applying accounting and financial reporting standards, KLDC is considered a governmental entity and a component unit of the City of Kingston since all board members are appointed by the Mayor. As such, KLDC has implemented the requirements of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management's Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local Governments.

- The financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
- The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section is management's analysis of KLDC's overall financial position and results of operations.
- The financial statements are prepared using the full accrual basis for all activities. Operating revenues and expenses result from providing lending services and also operation of a business park.

Notes Receivable

Notes receivable are shown net of the allowance for uncollectible accounts in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Receivables for loans are reviewed periodically by management to update the allowance for uncollectible amounts. These provisions are estimated based on an analysis of the aging of the receivable and any other factors known by management. The allowance for uncollectible accounts was \$32,130 as of December 31, 2019.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, KLDC considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 2 <u>SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES</u> (Cont'd.)

Capital Assets

All acquisitions of property and equipment are capitalized and recorded at cost. Capital assets as defined by KLDC are assets with an initial unit cost of \$1,000 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add the value of the asset or materially extend the asset's life are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects and depreciated when placed in service. Depreciation of property and equipment is provided on the straight line method

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Net Position

KLDC reports its net position in three components. Net investment in capital assets are equal to amounts reported for capital assets, net of related debt and accumulated depreciation, plus deferred outflows of resources less deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. Restricted net position is reported when assets (net of related debt) can only be used for a specific purpose that is established by grantors, contributors, laws or regulations governing KLDC. Unrestricted net position is all other net position that does not meet the definition of invested capital assets or restricted net position.

Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid expenses.

Income Tax Status

KLDC is a tax-exempt organization under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and similar New York State laws and, as such, is not subject to Federal or State income taxes. In addition, KLDC qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under Section 170(b)(a)(2) and has been classified as an organization other than a private foundation under Section 509(a)(2).

KLDC reviews the components of revenues, gains, and other support and analyzes whether the position that KLDC takes with regard to a particular item of income would meet the definition of an uncertain tax position under U.S. GAAP. KLDC files information tax returns in the U.S. Federal and New York State jurisdictions. The tax years that remain subject to examination by authorities are generally the previous three years.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 2 <u>SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES</u> (Cont'd.)

Accounting Pronouncements

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019, KLDC had implemented Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 84, *Fiduciary Activities*. The primary objective of Statement No. 84 is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how these activities should be reported.

KLDC has evaluated the provisions of GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations and Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowing and Direct Placement, and Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests – an amendment of GASB Statement Nos. 14 and 61, which became effective for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019, and determined that they have no significant impact on KLDC's financial statements.

The following are GASB Statements that have been issued recently and are currently being evaluated by KLDC, for their potential impact in future years:

- Statement No. 87, Leases, which will be effective for the year ending December 31, 2020;
- Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period, which will be effective for the year ending December 31, 2020;
- Statement No. 91, *Conduit Debt Obligations*, which will be effective for the year ending December 31, 2021; and
- Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, which will be effective for the year ending December 31, 2021.

Events Occurring After Reporting Date

Subsequent events were evaluated through May 15, 2020, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 3 <u>CASH AND CASH EQU</u>IVALENTS

KLDC maintains its cash balances at one financial institution located in Kingston, New York. Accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to \$250,000 each for interest and non-interest bearing accounts. Deposits at year-end were covered by the FDIC or by collateral held by a custodial bank in KLDC's name. The deposits consisted of the following:

			Collateralized	
	Bank	Insured	Custodial	
	Balance	by FDIC	Bank	Uncovered
Catskill Hudson Bank	\$ 3,518,792	\$ 250,000	\$ 3,268,792	\$ -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 4 RESTRICTED CASH

Payments received on Section 108 loans are restricted to paying KLDC's debt service on its outstanding Section 108 loans from HUD.

NOTE 5 LOANS RECEIVABLE

Revolving Loan Funds (RLF)

KLDC grants loans to businesses through the Community Development Revolving Loan Fund (CDRLF), Kingston Revolving Loan Fund (KRLF), Section 108 Loan Guarantee Program (Section 108), Kingston Newburgh Enterprise Corp. (KNEC), EDI and the Micro Enterprise Program (Micro). These loan funds allow KLDC to offer low interest loans to area businesses creating jobs in the City of Kingston. The proceeds of these loans are used to offer new loans once the previous loans have been paid in full. The activity for the year ended December 31, 2019 is as follows:

<u>Borrower</u>	/01/2019 Balance	Loans Granted		Loan Payments		Loan Write-Offs		12/31/2019 Balance	
CDRLF	\$ 174,170	\$	-	\$	(12,760)	\$	-	\$	161,410
KRLF	41,555		-		(1,895)		-		39,660
Section 108	676,343		-		(80,216)		-		596,127
EDI	20,625		-		(7,500)		-		13,125
Micro	4,658		-		(1,383)		-		3,275
Facade improvement	 15,368		10,382		(2,417)		(750)		22,583
Allowance for	932,719	\$	10,382	\$	(106,171)	\$	<u>(750</u>)		836,180
estimated losses	 (32,130)								(32,130)
Net	\$ 900,589							<u>\$</u>	804,050
Current portion Non-current	\$ 115,342							\$	129,088
portion, net	 785,247								674,962
Net	\$ 900,589							\$	804,050

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 6 CAPITAL ASSETS

Activity related to capital assets, as of December 31, consisted of the following:

	01/01/2019 Balance Additions Deletion			12/31/2019 Balance
Kingston Business Park (KBP) Land Depreciated assets:	\$ 2,784,953	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 2,784,953
Improvements	1,593,627			1,593,627
Total	4,378,580	-	-	4,378,580
Less: Accumulated depreciation: Improvements	(1,431,194)	(18,529)		(1,449,723)
Total KBP	\$ 2,947,386	<u>\$ (18,529)</u>	<u>\$ -</u>	<u>\$ 2,928,857</u>

KLDC owns and operates the KBP. Phase 1 of the Park was substantially completed during 1997. The first tenant, Huck International, moved into its facility in May 1997. The lease was for 20 years and has been extended for 10 years.

NOTE 7 LOANS PAYABLE

During 2005, KLDC drew down \$5,359,000 under the Section 108 loan guarantee program. The first principal payment on this loan was paid in August 2008 with varying amounts due through 2025. A total of \$600,000 is outstanding as of December 31, 2019.

KLDC has drawn down \$157,290 from DOT as part of the financing Phase 1 of the KBP. The loan is interest-free and was expected to be paid in varying amounts over 5 years. Repayment had been deferred several years but started in 2017. At December 31, 2019, the outstanding balance was \$78,645.

These loans can be summarized as follows:

	<u>Principal</u>			Interest		
2020	\$	131,458	\$	15,380		
2021		147,187		13,400		
2022		100,000		11,050		
2023		100,000		8,600		
2024		100,000		5,800		
2025		100,000		2,950		
Loans payable, long-term	\$	678,645	\$	57,180		

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 8 TRANSACTIONS WITH THE CITY OF KINGSTON

KLDC's staff members are actually employees of the City of Kingston's Community Development Office (CD). All of KLDC's activities are conducted out of the CD office. 50% of the staff's salary is allocated by the City of Kingston to KLDC based on estimated time spent on KLDC's activities.

NOTE 9 FEDERAL AND STATE AID

KLDC has received federal and state aid and grants that are subject to audits by agencies of the federal and state governments. Such audits may result in disallowances and a request for a return of funds to the federal and state governments. KLDC believes disallowances, if any, will be immaterial.

NOTE 10 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Cash and Cash Equivalents

State statutes govern KLDC's investment policies. In addition, KLDC has its own written investment policy. KLDC monies must be deposited in FDIC insured commercial banks or trust companies located within New York State. The treasurer is authorized to use demand accounts and certificates of deposit. Permissible investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury and New York State or its localities.

Collateral is required for demand deposits and certificates of deposit not covered by federal deposit insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are obligations to the United States and its agencies and obligations of New York State and its municipalities and school districts.

KLDC had no uncollaterized cash as of December 31, 2019

Notes Receivable

Notes receivable consists of numerous notes with businesses in the City of Kingston. KLDC has collateralized its interest in these notes by retaining the reversionary rights to the property or by acquiring additional liens and mortgages on the property.

NOTE 11 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to year end the world has been impacted by the Covid-19 virus. Management has discussed KLDC's operations and impact of this event. They have determined that KLDC's loan portfolio and rental activities could be impacted but, they believe the allowance for bad debt is sufficient to cover any potential loan losses.

* * * * * * * * * * * * * *

4 Associate Drive Oneonta, New York 13820 Phone: (607) 432-8700 Fax: (607) 432-5122

www.mmscpas.com

MOSTERT, MANZANERO & SCOTT, LLP

Deborah L. Mostert, CPA Anthony T. Manzanero, CPA Mary E. Manzanero, CPA David E. Brownell, CPA

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors City of Kingston Local Development Corporation Kingston, New York

We have audited in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of City of Kingston Local Development Corporation (KLDC), which comprise the statement of net position as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 15, 2020.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered KLDC's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of KLDC's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of KLDC's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of KLDC's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies, and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

MEMBERS: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, New York State Society of Certified Public Accountants, National Conference of CPA Practitioners

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether KLDC's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of KLDC's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering KLDC's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City of Kingston Local Development Corporation audit committee, management, the State of New York, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Mostert, Manzarero & Scott, LSP

Oneonta, New York May 15, 2020